«/0\ San Diego

B4 HOUSING COMMISSION

DATE ISSUED: August 6, 2008 REPORT NO.:HAR08-29
ATTENTION: Members of the Housing Authority

For the Agenda of September 9, 2008
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: San Diego Housing Commission

SUBJECT: Loan for Townspeople 34™ Street
COUNCIL DISTRICT: District 3
REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve a loan to finance acquisition and rehabilitation of a 34-unit rental housing development.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve a permanent loan of up to $2,040,000 for the acquisition and rehabilitation of a 34-unit
mixed-income housing complex with twelve units reserved as permanent rental housing for very
low-income persons living with HIV/AIDS and authorize the President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Housing Commission, or a designee, to execute necessary documents.

DISCUSSION:

Townspeople is a California 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation certified as a Community Housing
Development Organization {CHDO). The organization was established in 1994 with the mission
of developing affordable housing for persons living with HIV/AIDS. Because their medical
conditions inhibit or preclude employment, this targeted tenant population is characteristically
very low-income and has difficulty accessing decent rental housing at market-rate rents.

The proposed $2,040,000 permanent loan would be gap financing for Townspeople’s proposed
34™ Street development. Townspeople submitted a loan application in response to the current
Notice Of Funding Availability (NOFA) for Construction, Acquisition, and Operation of
Affordable Rental Housing dated March 14, 2008.

Located at 4637 34" Street in Normal Heights, the two-story complex, constructed in 1969, has
twenty one-bedroom apartments, thirteen two-bedroom apartments, and one two-bedroom
manager’s unit. It is conveniently located less than one block south of public transportation
access and retail services on Adams Avenue and less than four blocks north of the major
business and transportation corridor of El Cajon Boulevard. (see Attachment 1, Location Map)
The owner and seller is a family trust with Ms. Betty Ma as frustee and representative.
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Although the buildings are structurally sound, major mechanical systems are obsolete and there
is substantial deferred maintenance. The proposed major renovation would cost approximately
$1.3 million including bridge loan interest, architect fees, engineering fees, and contingencies.
The scope of work includes improvements to unit interiors, interior and exterior painting,
window replacement, heating system replacement, water supply plumbing replacement, electrical
upgrades, security system, and landscaping. Improvements would be made to convert two
apartments into units fully accessible to tenants with physical disabilities.

This would be the third affordable housing project for Townspeople. In 1995, the Housing
Commission loaned the nonprofit $257,000 for acquisition and rehabilitation of an eight-unit
apartment building located at 3845 Wilson Avenue in City Heights. In 2005, Townspeople
obtained a $1,570,000 Housing Commission loan as permanent gap financing to purchase and
renovate a 24-unit complex on 51% Street in City Heights. The previous developments are
successfully operated as HIV/AIDS permanent rental housing in compliance with Housing
Commission loan reguirements.

Townspeople’s previous developments consist solely of studio apartments suitable for occupancy
by single persons, Because of the increasing incidence of women and children living with
HIV/AIDS, the proposed project would reserve twelve one-bedroom units restricted to two
occupants to accommodate these families. Larger two-bedroom units would be made available
when necessary.

The project would be a mixed-use housing development for low-income residents and very low-
income residents living with HIV/AIDS. It is estimated that approximately twelve households
would require permanent relocation to make units available for the targeted special needs tenant
population. A number of current tenants who will qualify under the proposed affordability
restrictions would not require relocation. Pursuant to Federal Law, the relocation consultant,
Overland Pacific & Cutler, Inc., would conduct tenant interviews and administer advisory
services and monetary compensation to the displaced households. The developer budgeted
$247,500 in relocation costs based on the information in the consultant’s preliminary relocation
plan.

Townspeople would utilize a portion of project income to assist the HIV/AIDS symptomatic
residents in accessing an array of available service programs to help them obtain proper
nutrition, medical care, life skills counseling, case management, and other services.
Townspeople would be the sole owner and the operator of the proposed development; property
management would be provided by an on-staff management professional.
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The following table outlines the development team:

Owner- Townspeople Mr. Jon Derryberry, Townspeopie a 501(0)(3) nonproﬁt
Executive Director corporation

Developer- Townspeople Mr. Jon Derryberry, Townspeople / a 501(c)(3} nonprofit
Executive Director corporation

Finaacial Consultant Mr. Jahi Akobundu California Housing Partnership Corp.

Architect Ms, Caryn Bailey, AIA rAd Architects (private)

Relocation Consultant Overland, Pacific, and Cutler, Inc.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING IMPACT:

The Housing Commission would record 55-year rent and occupancy restrictions against the
property establishing affordability of twelve one-bedroom units to tenants with annual incomes
of 50 percent or less of Area Median Income (currently $31,600 for a two-person household) and
eight one-bedroom and thirteen two-bedroom units to tenants with incomes at 60 percent of Area
Median Income (currently $42,660 for a three-person household). One two-bedroom unit would
be reserved for occupancy by a resident manager and would not be rent-restricted. The actual
rents for the twelve units reserved for HIV/AIDS tenants are calculated to meet the more
stringent requirements of state and county housing programs and, as a result, would be affordable
to tenants with incomes at 30 percent or less of AMI (currently $18,950 for a two-person
household) with no special needs tenant paying more than 30 percent of their income in rent.

The developer applied for rent subsidies through the Federal Shelter Plus Care Program (S+C).
S+C participation is obtained through a competitive application for renewable annual grants to
provide housing for homeless individuals with disabilities. If it 1s secured in January of 2009 as
anticipated, a S+C grant to this project will enhance annual project income by approximately
$41,000. The proposed rent structure is outlined in the San Diego Housing Commission General
Application Form (see Attachment 4).

FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:

The sales price of $4,190,000 is less than the appraised value of $4,200,000. The proposed
Housing Commission participation would fund predevelopment activities, acquisition of the
property, and rehabilitation costs. With an estimated total development cost of $7,626,264
($224,302 per unit), the proposed $2,040,000 Housing Commission permanent loan ($60,000 per
unit) would leverage $5,586,264 from other sources.

Permanent financing would consist of a first position, amortized loan of Special Needs funds
from California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA), a second position residual receipts loan
from the California Department of Housing and Community Development’s Multifamily
Housing Program (MHP), the proposed third position residual receipts Housing Commission
loan, a residual receipts loan of Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) funds (the project would
qualify for MHSA funds with five units rented to persons dually diagnosed with HIV/AIDS and
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mental illness), a residual receipts loan of Federal Housing Opportunities For Persons With Aids
(HOPWA) funds, a grant from the Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program
(AHP), and a grant of Federal Supportive Housing Program (SHP) funds. The following table
summarizes the proposed sources of permanent financing outlined in Attachment 4:

-~ Permanent Sources | Amount | i Term E
CaIHFA Loan $ 1,380,351 20 yrs / 3 5% mterest amomzed
MHP Loan $ 1,727,483 | 55 yrs. / 3% interest; residual receipts
Housing Commission Loan | §2,040,000 | 55 yrs. / 3% interest; residual receipts
MHSA Loan $ 370,000 |55 yrs. /3% interest, residual receipts
HOPWA Loan $ 1,200,000 | 55 yrs. / 3% interest; residual receipts
SHP $ 400,000 | 55 yrs. / 0% interest; revocable grant
AHP $ 120,000 | 55 yrs. /0% interest; revocable grant
Deferred Developer Fee $ 388,430 | 0% interest; annual payments from cash flow
Total Development Cost $ 7,626,264 | o

The CalHFA loan would be capitalized through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds by CalHFA. In
addition to debt service on the CalHHF A loan, there would be a required minimum annual
payment to MHP of .42 percent of the MHP loan amount ($7,255) and a required minimum
annual payment to MHSA of .42 percent of the MHSA loan amount ($1,554).

Project income would not produce net cash flow sufficient to fund residual receipts payments
until the deferred developer fee is repaid at the end of the eighteenth year of the project. When
residual receipts payments commence, Townspeople would retain 50 percent of the residual cash
flow and the remaining 50 percent would be used to make payments on the Housing
Commission, MHP, MHSA, and HOPWA loans commensurate with each loan’s percentage of
participation in the financing. Unpaid principal and interest on the Housing Commission loan
would be due and payable upon refinancing or the maturity of the first position loan, whichever
oceurs first.

Because the MHP loan will not fund until conversion to permanent financing after the
acquisition and rehabilitation are complete, bridge financing would be necessary. Up to $400,000
of the Housing Commission loan would fund at acquisition as an interest reserve required by
Low Income Investment Fund (LIIF). The bridge loans would be repaid with the proceeds of
permanent financing. The following table outlines the sources of funds at acquisition:

. Acquisition Sources: - Amount | Termsg

Low Tncome [nvestment Fund $ 2,933,000 18 months @ 7 25% mterest

Local Initiatives Support Corp $ 838,000 | 18 months @ 7.00% interest

Corp For Supportive Housing $ 678,500 | 18 months (@ 6.00% interest

San Diego Housing Commission | $ 400,000 | 55 years @ 3.00% interest; residual receipts
Total $ 4,849,500 | T
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The Housing Commission permanent loan would be senior to the HOPWA financial participation;
however, the Housing Commission’s Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions
would be subordinate to the HOPWA regulatory agreement. Because the HOPWA rent and
affordability restrictions would meet or exceed the level of Housing Commission requirements,
this would have no effect on the Housing Commission’s ability to restrict occupancy and rents for
the development.

The Housing Commission made a $40,000 predevelopment loan for this project that will be
repaid with proceeds of the permanent financing, The predevelopment loan proceeds are paying
expenses of the developer directly related to the project including permit fees, design fees, and
consultant reports. The Housing Commission would also make a $10,000 Project Support Grant
to help Townspeople pay its direct labor costs for this development.

PREVIOUS ACTIONS:
On August 15, 2008, the Housing Commission voted to recommend this loan.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION AND PUBLIC QUTREACH EFFORTS:

The proposed development was reviewed by the Normal Heights Community Planning Group at
its regular meeting on April 1, 2008. The group voted unanimously to support the project and
issued a memorandum confirming its support on April 8, 2008.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Should HOME funds constitute a portion of the funding for the project, a final reservation of
HOME funds shall occur only upon satisfactory completion of environmental review and receipt
by the City of San Diego of a release of funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development under 24 CFR Part 58 of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The
parties agree that the provision of any HOME funds to the project is conditioned on the City of
San Diego’s determination to proceed with, modify, or cancel the project based on the results of
subsequent environmental review under NEPA. This project is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to State CEQA guidelines Section 15301 (existing
facilities).

KEY STAKEHOLDERS & PROJECTED IMPACTS:

Stakeholders include Townspeople as the nonprofit developer and the Community of Normal
Heights. The project is expected to have a positive impact on the community because it will
contribute to the quality of the surrounding neighborhood and provide much-needed rental
housing affordable to extremely low-income individuals and families affected by HIV/AIDS.
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Respectfully submitted, Approved by,

Carrol M. Vaughan

Director of Housing Finance Interim President and Chief Executive Officer

Attachments:

I
2
3
4.
5.
6
7
8

. Location Map
. Development Summary
. Development Timeline

General Application
Developer Disclosure Statement *

. Developer Financial Information *
. Housing Commission Loan Terms

Commitment Letter

*Distribution of these attachments may be limited. Copies available for review during business
hours at the Housing Commission offices at 1122 Broadway, San Diego, CA 92101, Main Lobby
and at the Office of the City Clerk, 202 C Street, San Diego, CA 92101,

Information: Mr. Dan Cady (619) 578-7594

g hfshare\HAreport Townspeople 34% Street 090908.doc(08/06/08)
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Address 4637 34th St
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Name:
Location:
Description:
Sponsor:

Unit Affordability

Total # of units:
Assisted units:
Restricted rents:
Market rent:
Percent of AMI:

ATTACHMENT - 2

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY
SPECIAL NEEDS RENTAL HOUSING
September 9, 2008

Townspeople

4637 34" Street

Rental housing for very low-income residents with HIV/AIDS
Townspeople

34

33

50 percent to 60 percent of AMI

$850 to $1,050 per month

occupancy of 12 units restricted at 50 percent or less of AMI
occupancy of 21 units restricted at 60 percent or less of AMI

Affordability: 55 years

Development Cost

Total development cost: $ 7,626,264

HC development cost (loan): $ 2,040,000

Total development cost per unit: $ 224,302 per unit / 34 units
HC cost per unit (loan): $ 60,000 per unit/ 34 units
Sources of Funds

CalHFA Loan $ 1,380,351

MHP Loan $ 1,727,483

Housing Commission Loan $ 2,040,000

MHSA Loan $ 370,000

HOPWA Loan $ 1,200,000

AHP Grant $ 120,000

SHP Grant S 400,000

Pro Forma Summary

Estimated annual income:

Annual debt service:

315,144 (year 1)

96,066

$

Estimated annual expense: $ 136,400 (year I)
$
$

Annual reserves:

17,136



ATTACHMENT - 3

TOWNSPEOPLE 34"™ STREET
SPECIAL NEEDS RENTAL HOUSING
ESTIMATED TIMELINE
October 10, 2008 Housing Commission loan closing
October 28, 2008 Start of rehabilitation
January 5, 2009 Shelter Plus Care funding authorization

May 8, 2009 Completion of Rehabilitation
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GENERAL APPLICATION FORM - Project Overview

Last revised: November 27, 2007 DATE: = i ] Ju%y 30 2008
PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED IN SHADED CELLS {Check all boxes that apply)

REQUEST FOR: EARLY ASSISTANCE PROJECT FUNDING $2,040,000
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE PREDEVELOPMENT LOAN 540,000
a PROJECT SUPPORT GRANT  § 10,000

PROJECT TYPE: | |ACQUISITION [X]ACQUISITION & REHABILITATION -RI“NTAL
[ Inew construcTION REHABILITATION [ Jownprsip
PROJECT CONDITION: [ Jusnaeroven srre [X |ResENTIAL COMMERCIAL

YEAR BUILT: 1969°

X |EXISTING STRUCTURE [ lotnsrmescrmry

PROJECTNAME:  The J4th Street Pro;ect R D

San Diego CA 92116 1.
1P

ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street | e
SERLLT e Rl el R Fe § g gt g g g T g .. i e e Z . -
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 1048 3002 Norm Helgh‘cs Rr 439-450-37-00° AP 1 S
TOTRE™  BLOCKNO- FEESSOR PARGRL RO s e DS TRACT—
SITE CONTROL: [ |DEED -OPI‘ION -OTHER (DESCRIBE) Purchase Agreement
DWELLING UNITS 50 i 200 4 ' i ERREE 34 48
0-BEDROOM TBEDROOM = - BEDROOM 3—BEDROOM 4-BEDROOM S~BEDROOM TOTAL UNITS "BEDROOME™
HC Assisted Units: L Thigg s 4 SRE SN IO R 34 48
O-BEDROOM F-BEDROOM 2 BLDROOM 3-BEDROOM 4-BEDROOM 5-BEDROOM TOTAL UNITS BED [

EXISTING USES OF PROPERTY: Residential Multi-family :

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROJECT: The’ proposecf mixed-inicome pro;ec’s is an acquisition and rehabilltatlon of permanent

NO.OF BULDINGS: 4 cii persons wrth HiV or AIDS éﬁ& otﬁér'éd\)\}'mcome’ 'h'o%;lsehoids
APPLICANT/BORROWER:
NAME: Townspeople CONTACT PERSON: Jon P Derryberry, Executive: D:r B
ADDRESS: 3960 Park: B'ivd , Suite B San Diego ool CAT 92103
STREET CITY STATE At

TELEPHONE: (619 295-880 FAXNO. (619 » 2954203 F-mail address: jon@towns people.org

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF APPLICANT:

[ ]FOR PROFIT CORPORATION [X INONPROFIT CORPORATION [ JeArTNERSHIP [ Jnovipuar owner

CHDO OTHER

TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 33:0623634 -

‘DESCRIBE

CURRENT OWNER/SELLER INFORMA? ION
NAME: Betty Ma' By
ADDRESS: PO Box 1023

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Far
La Jola Lo

TELEPHONE: (858 ) 663 7478

ZONING: RM=1:2

COUNCIL DISTRICT:

SIGNA'I URT: PRIN I'NAME TITLE DATE
L ]
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APPLICANT INTEREST FORM - Al

PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED

Page 2

FOR PROPOSED OWNERS, OFFICERS AND GENERAL PARTNERS - LIST ALL

NAME, ADDRESS, TITLE/POSITION, TELEPHONE, NATURE OF INTEREST AND PERCENT OF INTEREST

FOR SHAREHOLDERS, INVESTORS, LIMITED PARTNERS AND OTHERS - LIST ALL WITH A 10% OR HIGHER INTEREST

PROIECT NaME:  The 34th Street Project

ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego

CA 92116

ADDRESS
OWNERSHIP NAME: S

STATE ZiP
DATE: July 30, 2008

VP, of the Townspeople Board

1o Jeff Wallin © 0

:Board Member

NAME
11392 Winding Ridge Dr.o " © 0

TITLE/POSITION
858-549-4232

STREETRO T
SanDiego . CA'.
CITY

BUSINESS T }:,L]:,PHONE NO.

oo
STATE ZIP

PERCENT 1NTEREST

2 Susan Snowbarger Sectetary of the Towtispsople Boa

Board Member |

¥AME .....
3128 El Cajon Bhd.’

TITLE/ROSITION -
‘619-640-7530 1

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/PO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

STATE _ ZIP

PERC}:N r INTEREST

5. Jack Gunther ©© © o President of the Townspeople Boay

Board Member -~

NAME e - —
475 Redwood #805 Fiiiin i

_T_ITLEHPOSIT_I_ON
858-792-3383: 1

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/FO
San Diego ¢ CA | 92103 ©
CITY STATE  ZIP

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

TPERCENT INTEREST

4 George Harb - Townspeople -Bbjafd M'e;ﬁbef at La

Board Member

NAME .
1096 North Mollison:Ave. #4.

TITLE/POSTTION
619-977-4272

NATURF OF iNTLRES1 ’

STREET/PO

E} Cajon ....... CA
CITY STA’IF ZiP

BUSINESS TELEPI—EONI: ND

PERCENT INTEREST

5. Edie Hunt deviinSp'éb:pié:Boafd‘Mefnbé% at La

Board Member

_TITLE/PGSITION e
§19:299:0557 A

4275 Arguello'Street v

NATORE OF INTERBST

STREET/O e
SanDiego ' CA 92102
CILY STATE 7

BUSINESS '{ELEPHO’\IE NO

PERCENT INTEREST

6 Terry Darton - Tféas'ufefo'f-i;{'*Tb’iv_\@ufspefc;pié Boa

5.8-53- ‘Haber Street

TITLE/POSITION |
8589455853

STRI:EUPO BUSINESS TELEPHONE I\O

T, STATE. 7T

PERCENT INTEREST

7. Phil Van Ostrand . Townspeople Board Member at'La

Board Member

"i ITLEIPOSIT!ON

FOB0 315 Street

NA'l‘URF, OF INTEREST

STREETFO
SanDiego ' €A 92102
bTAlE Z1P

BUSINF 58 TELEPHONF NO.

PERCENT INTEREST

8. Jo Pi. ‘Derrybérry. Townspeople Executive Dir), Ex €

3960 Park:Bo_ﬁf}évai-;d;z-s:uite; B

TITLE/POSITION
619-295:8802

.NATURT QT.I.NT.E?RFST... -

STREET/PO

Sain Dlego
CIry

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

92003
STATE ZIP

PERCENT INTEREST
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SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION
APPLICANT INTEREST FORM - Al

PLEASE FTROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED

NAME, ADDRESS, TITLE/POSITION, TELEPHONE, NATURE OF INTEREST AND PERCENT OF INTEREST
FOR PROPOSED OWNERS, OFFICERS AND GENERAL PARTNERS - LIST ALL
FOR SHAREHOLDERS, INVESTORS, LIMITED PARTNERS AND OTHERS - LIST ALL WITH A 10% OR HIGHER INTEREST

PROJECT NAME:  The 34th Street Project

ADDRESS: 4637 34th Sireet San Diego CA 92116
ADDRESS - TT ~ STATE 7P

OWNERSHIP NAME: @ ..o 05 0 n o oo 5 o Ji paTE:  July 30,2008

S,

STREET/PO

CITY STATE ZfP .

STATE ZIp

STREET/®O — N " PERCENT INTEREST

CITY STATE 7P

NAME TILEFOSTION NATURE OF INTEREST

STREETFO T T~ BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. ' PERCENT INTEREST

Iy STATE 7

R — NRTORFOF NTFREST

STREET/PO ' BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

oY STATE. 717

NAME TLEPOSITION NATORE OF TNTEREST

PERCENT INTEREST

STATE 7P

NAME T T T HILEROSITION

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/PO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

NAMF TITLE/POSITION NATURE OF INTERES

PERCENT INTEREST

STREET/PO "BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO

CITY STATE ZIP
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PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED

Page 2b

FOR PROPOSED OWNERS, OFFICERS AND GENERAL PARTNERS - LIST ALL

NAME, ADDRESS, TITLE/POSITION, TELEPHONE, NATURE OF INTEREST AND PERCENT OF INTEREST

FOR SHAREHOLDERS, INVESTORS, LIMITED PARTNERS AND OTHERS - LIST ALL WITH A 10% OR HIGIHER INTEREST

PROJECT NAME:  The 34th Street Project

ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego

CA 92116

ADDRESS

OWNERSHIP NAME: SR

STATE Ziv
i DATE: July 30,2008

NAME "Z‘ITLE;’POSITION_ o

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/PO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

CITY

PERCENT INTEREST

NAME “TITLE/POSITION

'BU'SINESS TELEPHONE NO.

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/FO

CITY STATE ZIP

PERCENT INTEREST

NAME TITLE/POSITION

STREET/PO

CITY STATE TP

PERCENT INTEREST

TTARE

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREEL/PO '

STATE 710

CITY

PERCENT INTEREST

NAME

TITLE/POSITICN . )

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/PO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

STATE 7P

TITLE/POSITION

NATURE OF INTERE,

ST

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

STATE ZiP

PERCENT INTEREST

TITLE/POSITION

NATURE OF INIEREST

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

PERCENT INTEREST

TITLE/POSITION

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREET/P BUSINESS TELEPHONE NG.

CITY STATE  ZIP

PERCENT INTEREST
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SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION
APPLICANT INTEREST FORM - Al

PLEASE PROVEDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTEDR

NAME, ADDRESS, TITLE/POSITION, TELEPHONE, NATURE OF INTEREST AND PERCENT OF INTEREST
FOR PROPOSED OWNERS, OFFICERS AND GENERAL PARTNERS - LIST ALL
FOR SHAREHOLDERS, INVESTORS, LIMITED PARTNERS AND OTHERS - LIST ALL WITH A 10% OR HIGHER INTEREST

PROJECT NaME:  The 34th Street Project
ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego CA 92116
OWNERSHIP NAME: = @ i if T . DATE:  July 30, 2008

TITLE/POSITION

NAME ITI NATURE OF INTOREST

STREETRPO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

CITY SIATE 7P

NAME TITLEPOSITION

NATURE OF INTEREST

STREETFO BUSINESS TELEPTONE NG, FERCENT INTEREST

Iy ~ STAlE P

TITLE/POSITION NATURE OF INTEREST

NAME

Sj‘RE_ET/?:()' — - BUSTNESS TELEPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

oY STATE 770

WARTE ™ ' ' TLEPOSITION NATURE OF INTEREST

STREETIFO _ BUSINESS 16LFPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

CrY_ ~ STATE 7

NATORE OF INTEREST

TITLEPOSTITON

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. — PERCENT INTEREST

STATE £1P

TITLE/POSTTION

NATURE OF INTEREST _

STREET/FO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. PERCENT INTEREST

STATE 7P

'i'ITLEfPOSI'I'lON

STREET/PO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

Y ~  ITATE TP

WAME TITLE/POSITION ~— NATUREOF INTEREST

STREET/PO. — —"="  BUSINESS TELEPROKE NO. ~  PERCENT INTEREST

CITY STATE Z1P




Last revised: November 27, 2007
SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMNMNISSION
DEVELOPMENT FORM -RENTAL INCONME - RI

Page 3

PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED - CHECK ALL BOXES THAT APPLY DATE: July 30, 2008
PROJECT TYPE [JacquisiTioN [X JACQUISITION & REHABILITATION RENTAL

[ |NEW CONSTRUCTION IREHABILITATION [ 1 ownERsHIP
PROJECT NAME:! The 34th Street Project
ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego CA 92116

STREET CITY STATE Zm

UTILITY INFORMATION flnowt X, G, E, T, or L where indicated]

Gas (G or Electricity (E}

Type (X) in ONE box

FILL IN ALL BOXES G orE

Paid by Tenant (T) or Owner/Landlord {13
FILL INALL BOXES Tor L

B EE

Apartment Heat
Cooking

Duplex, Townhouse Water Heater
Water/Sewer

House, Mobile Home Basic Electric

ﬂr“l‘"—!’—;}l

LE EOQUALS: COMPARE T AFFORDABILITY
BED- BATH- MONTHLY MONTHLY MONTHLY MONTHLY tevi

BASIS NO. ROCMS ROOMS SQFT HOUSING UTILITY Tenant Paid  MARKET PERCENT YEARLY YEARLY
FOR OF PER PER PER CURRENT COST ALLOW, RENT RENT MEDIAN GROSS RENTS MARKET
RENT* UNITS UNIT UNIT UNIT RENT PER UNIT PER UNIT PER UNIT PER UNIT INCOME** ALL UNITS RENTS
MHP. 7 L. 100 6508 . U856 $ Ca s M4os 43008 2% 0§ 36120 § 71,400
MHSA® ©° 5t 100 7 i650:% % 8560 742§ 14 s 228§ 17 % S 13,680 § 51,000
x Sg - F 1000 TSSO L 85608 AT 8 14 3 765 60 % 3 73,440 $ 81,600
13 20 o 900°8 ¢ 90k % 9647 § 19 % 945§ 60 % § 147420 § 163,800

' oty " s s $ $ % § $

§ o 3 § $ § % % 5

o g $ $ § & % % $

% s $ $ § % % $

s s $ $ $ % % $

$ L) L% $ $ 0 % 0§ 5

§ AR © 8 $ $ % 5

s s s $ $ % 8 $

EREE] v 8 $ $ $ % 3 3

G g i % 5 $ $ % $

MGR | SO0 S B 3 £ $ % % $

MGR R ks g B LS Tian % $ % % % 3

* Indicate Tax Credit Rents with "TC" | Housing Commission Rents with "SDHC", HOME
rents with "HOME”, and Resident Manager's unit(s) with "MGR (bottom two rows)."
TOTAL RENT (YEAR) $ 270,660 3 367,800
** This calculation is based on a househeld size of one plus the bedroom type; Comp. to 0% of Market: $ 276,660 % 331,020
Please note that using tax credit rents may produce a different AMI percentage.
OTHER INCOME Laundry/storape = $ i iiapel

Shelter ¥ Care

TOTAL UNIT SQ. FT.

23600 + TOTAL COMMUNTIY FACILITITES SQ. FT.

TOTAL ANNUAL INCOME $315,144

TOTAL UNITS

34

TOTAL SQ. FT. 25,600



SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION
DEVELOPMENT FORM - OPERATING EXPENSE - OE

PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESFED - CHECK ALL BOXES THAT APPLY
Last revised: November 27, 2007

DATE:

Page 4
July 30, 2008

PROJECT TYPE: | jacquisrrion

ACQUISITION & REHABILITATION RENTAL

DNEW CONSTRUCTION DREHABIMTA?}ON DOWN‘ERSHiP
PROJECT NAME:  The 34th Street Project
ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego CA 92116
STREET CITY STATE 1P
TOTAL NUMBER OF UNI 34
COST COST
OPERATING EXPENSE ITEM ANNUAL COST PER UNIT PER 8, FT,
Administrative Expenses
Office Supplies & Equipment $ $ 74 8 0.10
Telephone $o $ 47 8 0.06
Training & Travel $ 3 I 0.01
Payrolt Services b 5 282 8% 0.37
Program Services $ § 529 % 0.7¢
Other _jffff-;;-;:fzggz.... ...... 3 IR % $
Subtotal Percent of Total 21% 8 32,077 $ 943 § 1.25
Marketing Expenses
Advertising $i0 3,000 $ 88 % 0.12
Other:_: % Lo e DI PR % 5
Subtotal Percent of Total 2% $ 3,000 $ 88 % 0.12
Professional Fees o
Property Management $ 26373 $ 776 % 1.03
Auditing Services $ 3,000 $ 88 % 0.12
Lega Services $ 1,700 $ 50 % 0.07
Ei i 5 750 § 22 % 0.03
Subtotal Percent of Total 20% 3 31,823 h 936 § 1.24
Utilities
Electric $ 12,000 $ 353 0§ 0,47
Gas $ R $ $
Water/Sewer $ 18,400 $ 541§ 0.72
Other:Qffice Utilities : T $ 1200 $ 35 % 0.95
Subtotal Percent cf Total 20% 3 31,600 $ 926 § 1.23
Contract Services
Exterminating $ $ 29 % 0.04
Trash Removal $ $ 176§ 0.23
Security Patrol $:- $ $
Building/Grounds Maintenance $: $ i85 § 0.25
Janitorial Services $: : $ 35§ 0.05
Repair Services $ 316 19{)1 3 476 % 0.63
Etevator & Other Equipment $00 b3 $
Garage OperationslMalntenance oo el $ $
Other: Site: Manager = ©- -0 $oiw0 100000 8 294§ 0.39
Subtotal Percent of Total 26% $ 40,690 by 1,197 §% 1.59
Cleaning & Decorating N
Painting Supplies § o 300 k) 8 8 0.05
Grounds Supplies $a 0500 8 15 % 0.02
Other: 7 sisi i v i g $ $
Subtotal Percent of Total 1% $ 1,800 $ 53 % 0.07
Taxes & insurance
Real Property Tax Assessment $ T 000 $ 29 5 0.04
Property Insurance $: 10000 $ 204 % 0.39
Director's &_Qf_ﬂcers Insurance 3 . 200: b 65 § 0.09
Other::: : it ke $ $
Subtotal Percent of Totai 8% $ 13,200 $ 388 § 0.52
Other
SDHC Monitoring Fees b $ 65 8§ 0.09
Other: i : 5 $ $
Other: b $ $
Other: & SELRDUTEEL AR L R e g i N $
Subtotal Percent of Total 1% $ 2210 b 65 % 0.09
Total Annual Operating Costs $ 156,400 $ 4600 % 6.11




SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION
DEVELOPMENT FORM - DEVELOPMENT COST -DC

Last revised: November 27, 2007

Page 5

PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTEP - CHECK ALL BOXES THAT APPLY DATE: July 3G, 2008
PROJECT TYPE: | |acQursITioN [XJACQUISITION & REHABILITATION (X |rentar
[ Jnew constrRUCTION [ JresaBwITATION [ Jownzrsnm
PROJECT NAME: The 34th Street Project
ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego CA 52116
STREET CITY STATE ZiP
Number of Units 34
DEVELOPMENT COST ITEM PERCENT AMOUNT DEVELOPMENT COST ITEM ~ PERCENT AMOUNT
ACQUISTTION / LAND COST o LEGAL, PERMIT, & AUDIT
LAND § 001 1:466,500 SDHC'S LEGAL (not to exceed) S__ 5,009
BUILDINGS §1i 2993 500 BORROWER'S LEGAL $. % . 32,500°
SUBTOTAL $ 4,190,000 LENDERS' LEGAL R 135 001
LEGAL/BROK §0 8000 PERMITS $
OTHER $.L R TITLE & RECORDING $.°
TOTAL ACQUISITION / LAND COST $ 4,198,000 INSURANCE $i
AUDIT $
REHABILITATION / CONSTRUCTION TAXES DURING CONSTRUCTION §
SITE WORK $ OTHER 5 i Cohi
BEMOLITION 5. . TOTAL LEGAL, PERMIT, & AUDIT $ 173,588
STRUCTURES S50 850:000° OTHER COSTS _ o
TOTAL HARD COSTS $ 850,000 DEVELOPER'S FEE 95 o s .. . 724000:
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 40 % s 734,000 CONSULTANT FEE 0.6 % §. 00 L ATS000
CONTRACTOR'S OVERHEAD 40 % $ 034,000 APPRAISAL COSTS $0 11,400
CONTRACTOR'S PROFIT 60 % 8 51,000 ENVIRONMENTAL STUDY 3. 8,500
TOTAL REHABILITATION / CONSTRUCTION  § 969,000 MARKET STUDY $. C5.000 7
MARKETING & RENT-UP §0 15000
CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY 18.35 % 5 177,571 SDHC MONITOR SET-UP $ 300
SDHC LOAN ORIGINATION FEF $ 2,600
BOND PREMIUM e REPLACEMENT RbSERVLL_ MONTHS  §. 34,600
OPERATING RESERVES __ MONTHS $: G208
Rl SN R
CONSTRUCTIGN INTEREST COST (85,000) s A
APPLICATION FEE PNA S Posi CUgs00
LOAN ORIGINATION FEE "Cos{ofl's:;ﬂahci:f’.ﬁzinaﬁx.:infI'.fce;s'(s.:cé:'_p:n.lgfe_r'r:u:z{sz}f R ':'5_2,800::
OTHER i - Prevaiting Wage Mositor it o g - .'5,:'95éﬂ'
I : i s G 15000
PERMANENT LOAN _ s U 473.029°
APPLICATION FEE g0 éé’ridig%e:!,:o:an:. ere _ © s 'i; : :;5'23,5355-
_ S. BrJdgeLoanl ees[EX nies So 83000
T T I T L 5 .
5 s
N
RELOCATION COST Posi
ARCHITECTURAL FEES BRI
DESIGN TOTAIL OTHER COSTS $ 1,486,615
SUPERVISION Sl 5800
TOTAL ARCHITECTURAL FEES G.1 % § 68,000 SOFT COSTS CONTINGENCY 780 % $.0 .:1554,69§0'5
SURVEYS, SOIL BORINGS, & ENGINEERING TOTAL PEVELOPMENT COST $ 7,626,264




SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION Last revisad: Novembar 27, 2007
DEVELOPMENT FORM - SQURCES AND USES OF FUNDS - 5U
PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED - CHECK ALL BOXES THAT APPLY

Page &
DATE: July 30, 2008

posccr [T écaunsmion ACQUISITION & REHABILITATION X]rmzaL NUMBER OF UNITS 34

" [ Inew coNsTRUCTION [7] resasmiTamion T Jownerskie

PROJECT NAME, The 34th Street Project

ADDRESS: 4637 341h Street San Diego CA 92116
STREET CITY STATE ZiF

POSITION COMMITMENT AMORTIZED BEFERRED TAX CREDIT GRANT EQUITY

i

i)

187 CalHFA Special Needs

DATEGR

EXFECIED

YiM
2ND MHP 55 3.00 % EEE
YRS HATE DATE R
{Select one) EXPECTRD
Residual Receipts Subsidy/Assisted Uniz § 60,000
of Subsidy/Assisted Bdn  § 42,500
Amertized
. Vit .
swp SDEC D S R iy g [N $i
VRS, RATE DATE DR
EXPECTED
YN
H550 EEalan % $5
i EXPECTED
YN
TAX CREDITS e
LATE OR
EXPECTED
. P . £
BQUITY il
DATE OR.
EXPECTED
TOTAL 7,628,264 1,380,351 s B,245.913 5 H
CLOSING revnnnernnernsGCONSTRUGTION PERIOD ren-reraroreres COMPLETION RENT UP
15T QUARTER 28D QUARTER 3RD QUARTER  4TH QUARTER QIRS5&8
TOTAL
CalHFA Special Needs $ 1,380,851 §h A $ i LR EEL fng G AR Genirg bnend Eiie g e 3R 35§
MHP $ 1727483 §10 D0 g LS yo7as3s)
SDHC $ 2,040,000 $ 400,000 § 640,000 §
other $ 2478430 §' $ e ABOS
$ - $
$ - $
% 7,626,264 § 400,000 § - $ - $ - 5 7,226,264 § -

CONSTRUCTION LENDER Cal[IFA f s i
CONSTRUCTION TIME

CONSTRUCTION INTEREST S48%0 %

COMMITTED: EXINO




SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION
DEVELOPMENT FORM - PRO FORMA - PF

PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION - CHECK ALL BOXES THAT APPLY

Last revised: November 27, 2007

Date:

Page 7

July 30, 2008

PROJECT TYPE: | |ACQUISITION [X_]ACQUISITION & REHABILITATION ~ [X IRENTAL
[ Inew consTrRUCTION [ |REHABILITATION [ JowNERsHIP
PROJECT NAME: The 34th Street Project
ADDRESS: 4637 34th Street San Diego CA 92116
STREET CITY STATE e
Replacement Reserve  $:0 0 117,136%  |LP Asset MgmntFee  § . Asset Management  $i7 2000
Rental Income $ 270,660 Project Income Increase Mortgage Amount $ 1,380,351 %
Other Income $ 44 484 Operating Exp.Jncrease Mortgape Rate 3.500
Operating Expenses $ 156,400 Vacancy Loss . Mortgage Term{Years) 20
LP & GP Annual Increase 50 057 10 1% iDeferred Dev, Fee $5 0 388,430 Interest on Peff. Dev. Feel @ @i 13 5 0higg
SDHC Participation 5 2,040,000  Residual Receipts iil Interest Rate 3.000 %
or

Percent of Residual to HC TBDY o0 7 Amortize [:; Term (Years) 35

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR S
Gross Project Income $ 315,144 § 323,023 b 331,098 $ 339376 % 3147 860
Vacancy 3 15,757 § 16,151 S 16,555 3 16,969 §$ 17,393
Effective Grosg Income  § 209,387 § 306,871 5 314,343 b3 322407 % 330,467
Operating Expense $ 136,400 § 161,874 $ 167,540 b 173403 % 179,473
Net Operating Income  § 142,987 § 144,997 $ 147,004 $ 149,003 § 150,994
Debt Service {Ist) $ 96,066 § 96,066 $ 96,066 $ 96,066 § 96,066
Coverage (1st) 1.49 1.5% 1.53 1.55 1.57
Replacement Reserve i 17,136 § 17,130 $ 17.136 h) 17,136 3 17,136
Cash Flow $ 29,785 § 31,796 $ 33,802 b 35.802 % 37,793
Required Payments b 8,809 % 8.809 b 8,809 § 8,809 % 8,809
Asset Management h 12,666 $ 12,000 $ 12,000 $ 12,600 § 12,000
Deferred Dev. Fee Pmt.  § 8,976 10,987 § 12593 14,093 8 16,984
SDHC Residual Receipts § 3 A3 $ $
Net Cash Flow $ $ h3 5 3

YEAR 6 YEAR 7 YEAR B YEAR 9 YEAR 1O
Gross Income $ 356,557 § 365,470 $ 174,607 5 383,972 § 393,572
Vacancy g 17,828 % 18,274 8 18,730 § 19.199 § 19,670
Effective Gross Income 8 338,729 § 347,197 $ 155 877 § 364,774 § 373,893
Operating Expense 3 185754 % 192,256 $ 198984  § 205949 § 213,157
Net Operating Income 8 152,975 % 154,941 $ 156,892 $ 158,828 § 164,736
Debt Service (1st) $ 96,066 % 96,066 kS 96,066 $ 96,066 % 96,066
Coverage {1st) 1.59 1.61 1.63 1.65 1.67
Replacement Reserve $ 17,136 $ 17,136 kY 17,136 $ 17,136  § 17,136
Cash Flow h 39773 § 41,74{ $ 43,691 $ 45623 § 47,534
Required Payments $ 8.80% § 8,809 $ 8,809 b 8,809 § 8,809
Asset Management $ 12,600 3% 12,000 $ 12,000 $ 12,066 % 12,000
Deferred Dev. Fee $ 18,964 $ 20,931 $ 22,882 b 24,814 § 26,725
SDHC Residual Receipts $ $ $ $ $
Net Cash Flow $ h $ $ b

YEAR 11 YEAR 12 YEAR I3 YEAR 14 YEAR 15
Gross Income $ 403,411 % 413,496 $ 423,834 $ 434,429 % 445,290
Vacancy $ 20171 § 20,675 $ 21,192 $ 21,721 % 22,265
Effective Gross Income  § 383,240 % 392,821 $ 402,642 $ 412,708 % 423,026
Operating Fxpense 3 220,618 § 228,339 b} 236,331 $ 244603 § 253,164
Net Operating Income 3 162,623 & 164,482 $ 166,311 $ 168,105 § 169,862
Debt Service (1s() $ 96,060 § 96,066 $ G6,066 $ 96,0006 % 96,066
Coverage (1st) 1.6% 171 1.73 1.75 1.77
Replacement Reserve b 17,136  § 17,136 $ 17,136 $ [7,136 % 17,136
Cash Flow b 49421 § 51,280 3 33,109 $ 54904 % 36,660
Required Payments $ 8,809 § 8,809 $ 8.80G9 $ 8,809 3§ 8,809
Asset Management $ 12,600 3 12,000 $ 12,000 $ 12,000 § 12,000
Deferred Dev. Fee $i 286120 Si S30471 0§ U300 § 34,095 §i - 35851
SDHC Residual Receipts § $ $ b b
Net Cash Flow b3 b 5 $ $




ATTACHMENT - 5

DEVELOPERS/CONSULTANTS/SELLERS/CONTRACTORS/
ENTITY SEEKING GRANT/BORROWERS
(Collectively referred to as "CONTRACTOR" herein)
STATEMENT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE
Name of CONTRACTOR:
Townspeople
Address and Zip Code;
3960 Park Blvd., Ste. B, San Diego, CA 92103
Telephone Number:
619-295-8802
Name of Principal Contact for CONTRACTOR:
Jon P. Derryberry, Executive Director (OR) Jasmine Fox, Project Manager
Federal Identification Number or Social Security Number of CONTRACTOR:
33-0623634

If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual doing business under his own name, the CONTRACTOR has
the status indicated below and is organized or operating under the laws of California as:

__ A corporation (Attach Articles of Incorporation)

X A monprofit or charitable institution or corporation. (Attach copy of Articles of Incorporation and
documentary evidence verifying current valid nonprofit or charitable status).

A partnership known as:

) {(Name)
Check one

( } General Partmership (Attach statement of General Partnership)
( } Limited Partnership (Attach Certificate of Limited Partnership)

A business association or a joint venture known as:
(Attach joint venture or business association

agreement}
. ATederal, State or local government or instrurnentality thereof,
Other (explain}

If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual or a government agency or instrumentality, give date of
organization:

We began in 1984 and incorporated in 1994,



8. Provide names, addresses, telephone numbers, title of position (if any) and nature and extent of the
miterest of the current officers, principal members, shareholders, and investors of the CONTRACTOR,
other than a government agency or instrumentality, as set forth below:

a. If the CONTRACTOR is a corporation, the officers, directors or trustees, and each stockholder
owning more than 10% of any class of stock.

b.  If the CONTRACTOR is a nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation, the members who
constitute the board of trustees or board of directors or similar governing body. See below table.

¢.  If the CONTRACTOR is a partnership, each partner, whether a general or limited, and either the
percent of interest or a description of the character and extent of interest.

d. If the CONTRACTOR is a business association or a joint venture, each participant and either the
percent of interest or a description of the character and extent of interest.

e. If the CONTRACTOR is some other entity, the officers, the members of the governing body, and
each person having an interest of more than 10%.

JeffWallin

STREETPO  BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.
_San Diego, CA 92131 =
CITY

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO,

Board Member
NATURE OF INTEREST

TITLE/POSITION

STREET/PO BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO

CITY NATURE OF INTEREST

mspeople Board M
TITLE/POSITION




STREET/PO
El Cajon, CA 92021

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.

‘Board Member

CITY

NATURE OF INTEREST

Edie Hunt |

Townspeople Board Member at Large

NAME

42775 Arguello Street

TITLE/POSITION

619-299-2557

STREETPO _
'San Diego, CA 92103

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO.
Boaiﬁ Member '

CITY

NATURE OF INTEREST

“Terry Darton_

Treasurer of the Townspeople Board

5853 Haber Street

TITLE/POSITION

858-945.5853

STREET/PO

_San Diego, CA 92122

CITY

NATURE OF INTEREST

_NAME |
1900315t Street

TITLEH’OSIT]ON_

STREET/PO
“San Diego, CA 92102

BUS;NESS TELEPHONE 1 NO |

CITY

NATURE OF INTEREST

9. Has the makeup as set forth in ltem 8(a) through 8(¢) changed within the last twelve (12) months. If yes,

please explain in detail

Yes, it has. We have gained 2 members and lost 1 member.

10.  Is it anticipated that the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) will change within the next twelve
{12) months? If ves, please explain in detail.

No



il

12

13,

14,

15.

16.

Provide name, address, telephone munber, and nature and extent of interest of each person or entity (not
named in response to liem 8) who has a beneficial interest in any of the shareholders or investors named
in response to Items § which gives such person or entity more than a computed 10% interest in the
CONTRACTOR (for example, more than 20% of the stock in a corporation which holds 50% of the
stock of the CONTRACTOR or more than 50% of the stock in the corporation which holds 20% of the
stock of the CONTRACTOCR);

N/A

Names, addresses and telephone numbers (if not given above) of officers and directors or trustees of any
corporation or firm listed under {tem 8 or Item 11 above:

N/A

Is the CONTRACTOR a subsidiary of or affiliated with any other corporation or corporations, any other
firm or any other business entity or entities of whatever nature, If yes, list each such corporation, firm or
business entity by name and address, specify its relationship to the CONTRACTOR, and identify the
officers and directors or trustees common to the CONTRACTOR and such other corporation, firm or
business entity.

N/A
Provide the financial condition of the CONTRACTOR as of the date of the statement and for a period of

twenty-four (24) months prior to the date of its staterent as reflected in the attached financial statements,
inclading, but not necessarily limited to, profit and loss statements and statements of financial position.

Please see attached Audit 2006 and P/L 2007.

If funds for the development/project are to be obtained from sources other than the CONTRACTOR's
own funds, provide a statement of the CONTRACTOR's plan for financing the development/project:

Please refer to Sources and Uses table in proformas.

Provide sources and amount of cash available to CONTRACTOR to meet equity requirements of the

proposed undertaking:

a. Inbanks/savings and loans;

1) Vanguard, P.O. Box 7800, Philadelphia, PA 19101-9892:
Amount: $6,813.91
2) Wells Fargo Bank, P.O. Box 6495, Portland, OR 97228-6995:

Amount: $45,801.37

b. By loans from affiliated or associated corporations or firms:
Name, Address & Zip Code of Bank/Savings & Loan:

Amount: $



17.

18.

19.

20,

¢. By sale of readily salable assets/including marketable securities:

Description Market Valve Mortgages or Liens
§ $

Names and addresses of bank references, and name of contact at each reference:

Hassan Khan

Wells Fargo Bank
3299 El Cajon Blvd.
San Diego, CA 92104
Phone: (619) 238-6554

Has the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR's officers or principal members, shareholders or
investors, or other interested parties been adjudged bankrupt, either voluntary or involuntary, within the
past 10 years?

__Yes X No

If yes, give date, place, and under what name.

Has the CONTRACTOR or anyone referred to above as “principals of the CONTRACTOR" been
convicted of any felony within the past 10 years? _ Yes _X No

If yes, give for each case (1) date, (2) charge, (3) place, (4) court, and (5) action taken, Attach any
explanation deemed necessary.

List undertakings (including, but not limited to, bid bonds, performance bonds, payment bonds and/or
improvement bonds) comparable to size of the proposed project which have been completed by the
CONTRACTOR including identification and brief description of each project, date of completion, and
amount of bond, whether any legal action has been taken on the bond:

N/A

Project Date of Amount of
Action on
Tvpe Bond Descrption Completion Bond Bond




21.

22.

If the CONTRACTOR, or a parent corporation, a subsidiary, an affiliate, or a principal of the
CONTRACTOR is to participate in the development as a construction contractor or builder, provide the
following information:

N/A

a.  Name and addresses of such contractor or builder;

b.  Has such contractor or builder within the last 10 vears ever failed to qualify as a responsible bidder,
refused to enter into & contract after an award has been made, or failed to complete a construction or
development contract? ___ Yes __ No

If yes, please explain, in detail, each such instance:

c.  Total amount of construction or development work performed by such contractor or builder during
the last three (3) years: §

General description of such work:

List each project, including location, nature of work performed, name, address of the owner of the
project, bonding companies involved, amount of contract, date of coramencement of project, date of
completion, state whether any change orders were sought, amount of change orders, was litigation
commenced concerning the project, including a designation of where, when and the outcome of the
litigation,

d.  Construction contracts or developments now being performed by such contractor or builder:

Identification of Date to be
Contract or Development Location Amount Completed

e.  Outstanding construction-contract bids of such contractor or builder;

Awarding Agency Amount Date Opened

Provide a detailed and complete statement respecting equipment, experience, financial capacity, and
other resources available to such contractor or builder for the performance of the work involved in the
proposed project, specifying particularly the qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment,
and the general experience of the building contractor:

N/A



23,

24,

Does any member of the governing body of the San Diego Housing Commission ("COMMISSION™,
Housing Authority of the City of San Diego ("AUTHORITY™) or City of San Diego ("CITY"), to which
the accompanying proposal is being made or any officer or emplovee of the COMMISSION, the
AUTHORITY or the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the
carrying out of the project covered by the CONTRACTOR's proposal, have any direct or indirect
personal financial interest in the CONTRACTOR or in the proposed contractor? __ Yes X No

If yes, explain.

Statements and other evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial responsibility (other
than the financial statement referred to in Item 8) are attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof as
follows:

Townspeople’s First Completed Permanent Affordable Supportive Housing Project: The Wilson Avenue
Apartments, 3845 — 3851 % Wilson Avenue, San Diego, CA 92104,

Project Description: In December of 1995, Townspeople created San Diego's first independent apartment
complex for low-income persons living with HIV/AIDS, which consists of 8 one-bedroom units. The
Wilson Avenue Apartments are located in the City Heights neighborhood of San Diego within walking
distance to key bus routes, so that residents without cars can effectively commute to needed services.
Each of the complex's 8 units includes a living room, bedroom, bathroom, and kitchen with new
appliances. Shared amenities include a patic area with a colorful wall mural and a barbeque. The
complex is protected by a 24-hour gated security system as well as an on-site manager.

The project is an example of the Supportive Housing model, in which residents with special needs or
disabilities live independently, following all of the provisions of a lease, and receive supportive services
from local service providers, which help them maintain housing on a permanent basis.

Financing: Townspeople obtained project funding for the Wilson Avenue Apartments from the San
Diego Housing Commission (SDHC), and Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA).
‘Townspeople also recently rehabilitated the property with funding from Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) from City Council Member Toni Atkins and funding from San Diego County Supervisor
Ron Roberts.

Townspeople’s Second Completed Permanent Affordable Supportive Housing Project: The 51st Street
Project, 4242, 4252, & 4260 51st Street, San Diego, CA 92115

Project Description: Townspeople announced the Grand Opening of the 51st Street Project in October
2007. The project is a 24-unit apartment complex rehabbed specifically for the low-low income,
homeless special needs population in San Diego. The 51st Street Project is located in the City Heights
neighborhood of San Diego within walking distance to key bus routes, so that residents without cars can
effectively commute to needed services, Each of the complex's 24 studio units includes a living room,
bathroom, and kitchen with new appliances. Shared amenities include a barbeque area and landscaped
yard, and the complex is protected by a 24-hour gated security system as well as an on-site manager.

The project is an example of the Supportive Housing model, in which residents with special needs or
disabilities live independently, following all of the provisions of a lease, and receive supportive services
from Jocal service providers, which help them maintain housing on a permanent basis.

Financing: Townspeople obtained predevelopment, acquisition, and construction funds for this project
from a variety of sources including the San Diego Housing Commission (SDHC), the Corporation for
Supporiive Housing (CSH), the Low Income Investment Fund (LIIF), Federal Home Loan Bank,



25.

26.

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Mission Federal Credit Union, and California
Department of Housing and Community Development MHP Fund,

Is the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or are any of the proposed subcontractors, currently involved in
any construction-related htigation? _ Yes X No

If yes, explain:

State the name, address and telephone numbers of CONTRACTOR's insurance agent(s) and/or
companies for the following coverages: List the amount of coverage (limits) currently existing in each
category:

a.  General Liability, inchuding Bodily Injury and Property Damage Insurance [Attach certificate of
insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]

Wateridge Insurance Services

10717 Sorrento Valley Rd.

San Diego, CA 92121

Ph: (858) 452-2200

See attached Certificate, Endorsement, and Special Form Endorsement for detailed
information.

O
-
&
&
o
Z
8
%
€]
—_—
2z
5

Comprehensive Form

Premises - Operations

Explosion and Collapse Hazard
Underground Hazard
Products/Completed Operations Hazard
Contractual Insurance

Broad Form Property Damage
Independent Contractors

Personal Injury

P

IR

X

(| e

b, Automobile Public Liability/Property Damage [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount
of coverage and coverage period(s}]

Wateridge Insurance Services

10717 Sorrento Valley Rd.

San Diego, CA 92121

Ph: (858) 452-2200

See attached Certificate for detailed information.

Check coverage(s) carried:

Dd Comprehensive Form -
B Owned
X Hired

B Non-Owned

¢. Workers Compensation [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of coverage and
coverage period(s)]



27

28

29.

State Compensation Insurance Fund

1275 Market Street

San Francisco, CA 94103-0807

Ph: (877} 405-4545

See attached Certificate for detailed information.

d.  Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) {Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount
of coverage and coverage period(s)]

Great American Insurance Companies (via Wateridge Insurance Services)

10717 Sorrento Valley Rd.

San Diego, CA 92121

Ph: (858) 452-2200

See attached Wateridge cover letter with Great American Insurance Co. Certificate for
detailed information.

e.  Excess Liability [Attach certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of cbverage and coverage
period(s)]

f. Other (Specify) [Attach certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage
period(s)]

Type: Property Insurance for two Townspeople-owned and operated affordable apartment projects.

Trip Wilson Insurance Company (Farmer’s Insurance)
5959 Mission Gorge Rd., #201

San Diego, CA 92120

Ph: (619) 858-2081

See attached Certificate for detailed information.

CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not during the term of the PROJECT, GRANT,
LOAN, CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT and/or RENDITIONS OF SERVICES discriminate against
any employee, person, or applicant for employment because of race, age, sexual orientation, marital
status, color, refigion, sex, handicap, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action
to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without
regard to their race, age, sexual orientation, marital status, color, religion, sex, handicap, or national
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the COMMISSION setting forth the provisions of
this nondiscriminstion clause.

The CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not without prior written consent of the
COMMISSION, engage in any business pursuits that are adverse, hostile or take incompatible positions
to the interests of the COMMISSION, during the term of the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN,
GRANT, CONTRACT and/or RENDITION OF SERVICES.

CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that no member, commissioner, councilperson, officer, or
employee of the COMMISSION, the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY, no member of the governing body



30.

31,

32.

33.

34,

of the locality in which the PROJECT is situated, no member of the government body in which the
Commission was activated, and no other public official of such locality or localities whe exercises any
functions or responsibilities with respect to the assignment of work, has during his or her tenure, or will
for one (1) year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this PROJECT or the proceeds thereof.

List all citations, orders to cease and desist, stop work orders, complaints, judgments, fines, and penalties
received by or imposed upon CONTRACTOR for safety violations from any and all government entities
including but not limited to, the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, the State of California, the
United States of America and any and all divisions and depariments of said government entities for a
period of five (5) years prior to the date of this statement. If none, please so state:

None.

Government Entity
Making Complaint Date Resolution

Has the CONTRACTOR ever been disqualified, removed from or otherwise prevented from bidding on
or completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a viclation of law or a safety
regulation, If so, please explain the circumstances in detail. If none, please so state:

None.

Please list all licenses obtained by the CONTRACTOR through the State of California and/or the United
States of America which are required and/or will be utilized by the CONTRACTOR and/or are
convenient to the performance of the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT, or
RENDITION OF SERVICES. State the name of the governmental agency granting the license, type of
license, date of grant, and the status of the license, together with a statement as to whether the License
has ever been revoked:

None.
Governmental Description License Datelssued  Status Revocation
Agencv License Number (original) {current) {ves/no)

Describe in detail any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may adversely affect
CONTRACTOR's ability to perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT,
CONTRACT, SALES of Real Property to, DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the LOAN, adherence to
the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of consulting or other services under CONTRACT with
the COMMISSION,

None.

Describe in detail, any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may favorably affect
CONTRACTOR's ability to perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT,
CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT,
or performance of consulting or other services under CONTRACT with the COMMISSION.

" None.



35, List all CONTRACTS with, DEVELOPMENTS for or with, LOANS with, PROJECTS with, GRANTS
from, SALES of Real Property to, the COMMISSION, AUTHORITY and/or the CITY within the last

five (5) years:

Entity lnvolved Status

(ie., CITY, {Current, delinquent Dollar
Date COMMISSION. etc.) repaid, etc.) Amount
1995 SD Housing Commission Current $131,850
2006 5D Housing Commission Current $1,570,000

36, Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed
subcontractors, been the subject of a complaint filed with the Contractor's State License Board (CSLB)?
Yes ___NoX

If yes, explam:

37. Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed
subcontractors, had a revocation or suspension of a CONTRACTOR's License?
_Yes _X No

If ves, explain:

38, List three local references who would be familiar with your previous construction project:
Name: Murray Builders
Address: 9715 Carroll Center Road, Ste. 102, San Diego, CA 92126
Phone: (858} 695-8353
Project Name and Description:
s The 51* Street Project, 2007: Acquisition rehabilitation of a 24 unit apartment building in City Heights

for an affordable supportive housing project dedicated to low low individuals diagnosed with
HIV/AIDS.

Name: McFarland Construction
Address: 1119 South Mission Avenue, #322, Fallbrook, CA 92028
Phone: (760) 622-6217

Project Name and Description:
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* The 51% Street Project, 2007: Acquisition rehabilitation of a 24 unit apartment building in City Heights
for an affordable supportive housing project dedicated to low low individuals diagnosed with
HIV/AIDS,

» Wilson Ave. Apartments Renovation, 2007: Major renovation of 6 units at the Wilson Ave. Apartments,
a Townspeople owned and operated affordable supportive housing project dedicated to Iow low
individuals diagnosed with HIV/AIDS.

Name: Corporation for Supportive Housing
Address: 328 Maple Street, 4th Floor, San Diego, CA 92103
Phone: (619) 2344102

Project Name and Description:

The 517 Street Project, 2007: Acquisition rehabilitation of a 24 unit apartment building in City Heights
for an affordable supportive housing project dedicated to low low individuals diagnosed with
HIV/AIDS.

Give a brief statement respecting equipment, experience, financial capacity and other resources available
to the Contractor for the performance of the work involved in the proposed project, specifying
particularly the qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment and the general experience of
the Contractor.

Townspeople’s First Completed Permanent Affordable Supportive Housing Project: The Wilson Avenue
Apartments, 3845 - 3851 %4 Wilson Avenue, San Diego, CA 92104,

Project Description: In December of 1995, Townspeople created San Diego's first independent apartment
complex for low-income persons living with HIV/AIDS, which consists of 8 one-bedroom units. The
Wilson Avenue Apartments are located in the City Heights neighborhood of San Diego within walking
distance to key bus routes, so that residents withowt cars can effectively commute to needed services.
Each of the complex's 8 units includes a living room, bedroom, bathroom, and kitchen with new
appliances. Shared amenities include a patio area with a colorful wall mural and a barbeque. The
complex is protected by a 24-hour gated security system as well as an on-site manager.

The project is an example of the Supportive Housing model, in which residents with special needs or
disabilities live independently, following all of the provisions of a lease, and receive supportive services
from local service providers, which help them maintain housing on a permanent basis.

Financing: Townspeople obtained project funding for the Wilson Avenue Apartments from the San
Diego Housing Commission (SDHC), and Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA).
Townspeople also recently rehabilitated the property with funding from Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) from City Council Member Toni Atkins and funding from San Diego County Supervisor
Ron Roberts.

Townspeople’s Second Completed Permanent Affordable Supportive Housing Project: The S1st Street
Project, 4242, 4252, & 4260 51st Street, San Diego, CA 92115

Project Description: Townspeople announced the Grand Opening of the 51st Street Project in October
2007, The project is a 24-unit apariment complex rehabbed specifically for the low-low income,
homeless special needs population in San Diego. The 51st Street Project is located in the City Heights
neighborhood of San Diego within walking distance to key bus routes, so that residents without cars can
effectively commute to needed services. Each of the complex's 24 studio units includes a living room,



40.

bathroom, and kitchen with new appliances. Shared amenities include a barbeque area and landscaped
vard, and the compiex is protected by a 24-hour gated security system as well as an on-site manager.

The project is an example of the Supportive Housing model, in which residents with special needs or
disabilities live independently, following all of the provisions of a lease, and receive supportive services
from local service providers, which help them maintain housing on a permanent basis.

Financing: Townspeople obtained predevelopment, acquisition, and construction funds for this project
from a variety of sources including the San Diego Housing Commission (SDHC), the Corporation for
Supportive Housing (CSH), the Low Income Investment Fund (LIF), Federal Home Loan Bank,
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Mission Federal Credit Union, and California
Department of Housing and Community Development MHP Fund.

Give the name and experience of the proposed Construction Superintendent.

TBD.



CONSENT TO PUBLIC DISCLOSURE BY CONTRACTOR

By providing the "Personal Information”, (if any) as defined in Section 1798.3(a) of the Civil Code of the State
of California (to the extent that it is applicable, if at all), requested herein and by seeking a loan from, a grant
from, a contract with, the sale of real estate to, the right to develop from, and/or any and all other entitlements
from the SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION ("COMMISSION™), the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO ("AUTHORITY"} and/or the CITY OF SAN DIEGO ("CITY"), the
CONTRACTOR consents to the disclosure of any and all "Personal Information” and of any and ail other
information contained in this Public Disclosure Statement. CONTRACTOR specifically, knowingly and
intentionally waives any and ali privileges and rights that may exist under State and/or Federal Law relating to
the public disclosure of the information contained herein. With respect to "Personal Information”, if any,
contained herein, the CONTRACTOR, by executing this disclosure statement and providing the information
requested, consents to its disclosure pursuant to the provisions of the Information Practices Act of 1977, Civil
Code Section 1798.24(b). CONTRACTOR is aware that a disclosure of information contained herein will be
made at a public meeting or meetings of the COMMISSION, the AUTHORITY, and/or the CITY at such times
as the meetings may be scheduled CONTRACTOR hereby consents to the disclosure of said "Personal
Information", if any, more than thirty (30} days from the date of this statement at the duly scheduled meeting(s)
of the COMMISSION, the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that public
disclosure of the information contained herein may be made pursuant to the provisions of Civil Code Section
1798.24(d).

CONTRACTOR represents and warranis {o the COMMISSION, the AUTHORITY and the CITY that by
providing the information requested herein and waiving any and all privileges available under the Evidence
Code of the State of California, State and Federal Law, (to the exient of this disclosure that the information
being submitted herein), the information constitutes a "Public Record" subject to disclosure to members of the
public in accordance with the provisions of California Government Section 6250 et seq.

CONTRACTOR specifically watves, by the production of the information disclosed herein, any and all rights
that CONTRACTOR may have with respect to the information under the provisions of Government Code
Section 6254 including its applicable subparagraphs, to the extent of the disclosure herein, as well as all rights
of privacy, if any, under the State and Federal Law.

] ;
Executed this_z/T {A'day of A&?};"t { ,20 8, at San Diego, California,

CONTRACTOR

By:
Signatur B

Title 'Qx‘e-fc_. d"{“\ VS




CERTIFICATION

/"\

The CONTRACTOR, (o 5 9@(;0[ , hereby certifies that this CONTRACTOR's
Statement for Public Disclosure and the attached mformanon/ewdense of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications
and financial responsibility, including financial statements, are true and correct to the best of CONTRACTOR's
knowledge and behef.

By { By:
Title: & Jx‘e:( u“f“w“—m"\-:"eé?&xr Title:
Dated: 4 - l{—0F Dated:

WARNING: 18 U.S.C. 1001 provides, among other things, that whoever knowingly and willingly makes
or uses a document or writing containing any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, in any
matter within the jurisdiction or any department or agency of the United States, shall be fined not more
than $10,0060 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or both.

JURAT

State of California

County of SQ/Vi D(\'éa o

Subscribed and swormn to {or affirmed) before me on this ] { day of AT) r/‘/( 20 0 g/
by ’j-{“ﬂ PQ&LQ D € )ﬂ bt,k M persenall-knoun. 0. me or proved to me on the

basis of satisfactoryt

evidence to be the person(e) who appeared before me.

gi}(ﬁg/ﬁﬂ""{/&ﬂm

Signature et Notary

SEAL

See attached
Notarial Wording

DISCLOSE.PUB



CALIFORN!A JURAT WiTH AFF!ANT STATEMENT
BRSO g

U See Attached Document (Notary 1o cross out fines 1-6 below)
L See Staternent Below (Lines 1-5 to be completed only by document signer{s], not Notary)

-”;
..... e
(__,.»»” -
USlgnamm of Document Slgner o, Signature of Douurn‘ent Signer No. 2 {if any)

State of California

County of gl’;tfﬂ Dﬁ,@ﬁ@

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this

_ U dayor Aprad 5 ﬁé}.by

Date Maonth Year
- X

M Jon_ Paull D,@m/b; e Laasy

N Name of Sigher

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
Commissicn # 1668293 to be the person who appeared before me () {,)
Notary Public - California £
san Diego County r ' (and
My Comm. Expires Jun 17, 2010 (2) V) / ﬁ—' ,

Name of Signer

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
to be the person who appeared before me.)

Signature (/U&P (A

Signature of Notary Public

Piace Notary Seal Above

OPTIONAL
Though the information below s not required by law, if may prove -
valuable 1o persons relying on the document and could prevent “-'GSE ;’.*2-,%"‘;2@?‘”‘ “'G(‘;',;r ;%%“é%’;gm
fraudulent removal and reatiachment of this form fo ancther docurment. “Top of thumb here Top of thumb here

Further Description of Any Attached Document

Title or Type of Docﬁmsnt:

Documert Date: Number of Pages:

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

© 2007 National Notary Association » 9350 De Soto Ave., PO, Box 2402 - Chatswonh CA 91313+ 2402- W, NatﬁonalNotary org lem #5910 Reorder: Call Tok-Free 1-B00-876-6827
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Townspeople

(A Nornprofit Corporation)
3960 Park Blvd., Suite B
San Diego, California 92103

We have audited the accompanying statens
Corporation), as of December 31, 2007#and
flows for the year then ended. Thes
management. Our responsibility is to.€xpr

ancial statements are the responsibility of Townspeople’s
An opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in acc 08 with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes cxamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also inclodes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respect, the
financial position of Townspeople as of December 31, 2007, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 8, 2008,
on our consideration of Townspeople’s internal control ever financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other maiters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intermal control over
financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Townspeople Page 2
(A Nonprofit Corporation)

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 15 and 16 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of Townspeople. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for Townspeople is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respegts, in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole, g

San Diego, California
July 8, 2008



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2007

ASSETS
Current Assets: (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
Cash
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Investments 4
Total Current Assets

e
A
i

Restricted Reserves: (Note 4)
Operating reserve

I.and, Building and Equipment,

net of accumulated depreciation (N

TOTAL ASSETS

TABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities: (Notes 1, 6 and 7)
Accounts payable
Payroll taxes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Line-of-credit
Deferred revenue
Tenant security deposits
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities: (Note 7)
Notes payable
Accrued interest payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Commitment (Note 9)
Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) (Notes I and 8)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

3

$ 29,919
52,699
1,833
10,919

20

95,390
37.127

3.550,940

$3.683.457

$ 11,617
6,525
3,835
1,589

15,626
26,850
14,875
80.917

3,573,327
166,672
3.739.999

3,820,916

(137.459)

$3.683.457



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Revenue and Support:

Developer fee $307,615
Grants and contracts 195,874
Rental income 142,164
Contributions 8,158
Interest income 4,073
Miscellaneous income 2,409
Total Revenue and Support 660,293
Expenses:
Program Services:
51st Street Apartments 282,225
Housing services 109,161
Wilson Avenue Apartments 65.970
Total Program Services 457.356
Supporting Services:
General and administrative 186,328
Fundraising __5700
Total Supporting Services 192,028
Total Program and Supporting Services Expenses ' 649,384
Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 10,909
Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year (148.368)
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR $(137.459

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Cash Flows From erati iviti
Change in unrestricted net assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assefs
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
{(Increase)} Decrease in:
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Payroll taxes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest payable '
Deferred revenue
Tenant security deposits &
Net Cash Provided by Opefating Attivities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Operating reserve deposits
Purchase of land, building and equipment
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash ¥lows From Financing Activities: ]
Line-of-credit '
Proceeds from notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Net Cash Provided From Financing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year
CASH,END OF YEAR

Supplementary Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest of $23,149

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

5 10909

86,183

(52,699)
1,410
1,742

7,948
186
(1,078)
52,694
1,850

5375

114.52

(37,127)
(876.325)
~(913.452)

15,626
2,068,225
(1.511,598)
572253
(226,679)
256,598

b.__29919

$__08.809



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONFPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Note 1 - Oreganization ture of Activities a ienificant Accounting Policies:

Organization and Nature of Activities

Townspeople (the “Agency”) was established in 1984 and was incorporated as a
nonprofit corporation in July, 1994, The Agency’s purpose is to effect the provision of
decent housing that is affordable to low-income and mod or te~mcome persons, especially
those who are HIV infected or disabled. The Agencﬁs fuindeds art through private dona-
tions as well as corporate, foundation and guvemmeﬁ i ants. The Agency provides housing

information, referral services, affordable rental houSing & d other services throughout San

a community—based HIV/AIDS servige provider agency. The Agency is considersd San
Diego’s premier inform “fon and referrai agency assisting homeless and at risk
individuals and families | WAth HIV/AIDS secure, clean, safe, affordable housing
and other vital human services and entitlements. Annually, Townspeople responds to
more than 10,000 requests for information and services for men, woman and children

living with HIV/AIDS.

The Agency’s Community Quireach Program complements the foregoing services
and is designated to further develop the agency’s information and referral services to
consumers living in North County, East County, South East, South Bay and Ceniral
San Diego. The objectives of this activity is to extend information and referral services
to the incorporated and unincorporated communities in these five areas of the county.

Townspeople publishes a biweekly list of affordable rentals offered by sympathetic
landlords, HIV friendly roommates, group homes in San Diego County, and HOPWA
funded housing units.

51st Street Apartments

In August of 2005, the Agency acquired the 51st Street Apartments and completed
renovation of the units in 2007. The 51st Street Apartments consist of 24 units
available for low-income persons living with HIV/AIDS. In addition, under the terms
of the San Diego Housing Commission note payable, the units are rent and occupancy
restricted for twenty years.



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Note 1 - Organization and Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Organization and Nature of Activities (Continued)
Wilson Avenue Apartments
k]

In December of 1995, the Agency opened Sap D, gi) ] ﬁrst independent apartment
complex for low-income persons living with I—HV{A]D Z{f,he Wilson Avenue Apart-
ments consist of & units available for low-lncomgpersons living with HIV/AIDS.

ant Accounti

Method of Accounting

Habilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 117, “Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Organiza-
tions”, which requires the Organization to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets,
temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Bad debts are recognized on the allowance method based on management’s
evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts
totalled $2,572 at December 31, 2007,



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2067

Note I - Organization and Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the dgnor,
Agency that is, in substance, uncondi‘uonal ngmb

ﬁscal year in which the con‘mbuttons are %S:o ized. All other donor restricted
Ir oF rily or permanently restricted net

assets depending on the nature of the restrl_. tions. When a restriction expires,

temporarily restricted net assefs are éclasmﬁeﬁ to unrestricted net assets.

Investments

The Agency follows tatement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 124
“Accounting for Certain Iny siménts Held by Not-For-Profit Organizations” whereby
investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of finan-
cial position,

Land, Building and Equipment

Land, building and equipment are recorded at cost. Donations of property and
equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair value. Such donations are
reported as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a

- specific purpose, Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported
as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated
assets must be maintained, the Agency reports expirations of donor restrictions when
the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
Agency reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that
time. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to operations as incurred.
Property and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the esti-
mated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 3 -27.5 years
Equipment 5 years
Furniture _ 5 years
Appliances . 5 years



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

rganization and Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Pelicies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Land, Building and Equipment (Continued)

m"-”

Depreciation aggregated 586,183 for the year i:?d od December 31, 2007,
p ff'
Compensated Absences 1

Beferred Revenue

Income received in adyance is eferred and recognized over the periods to which
the income relates. Deferfed revenue totalled $26,850 at December 31, 2007,

Contributed Services and In-Kind Donations

During 2007, valuable assistance was given by several HIV/AIDS community
volunteers whose donated hours helped the Agency respond to more than 10,000
requests for assistance from individuals and families living with HIV/AIDS in San
Diego County. The valuation of this contributed time is not reflected in these state-
ments since it is not susceptible to objective measurement or valuation.

Allocated Expenses

Expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting services
classifications on the basis of internal records and estimates made by the Agency’s
management,

Income Tax Stafus

The Agency is exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and comparable state law, and contributions to it are tax deductible
within the limitations prescribed by the Code. The Agency is not a private foundation.
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TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Note 1 - Organization and Nature of Aetivities and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Agency maintains its cash in bank depos;t a’%‘ "s’unts and money market funds
which, at times, may exceed federally insured hﬁu}s‘w h Agency has not experienced
any losses in such accounts. The Agency beixsﬂvs it is n6t exposed to any significant
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. %

Cash and Cash Fquivalents
For purposes of the statéfi}tgnﬂ

instruments purchased wzth af‘
equivalents.

Note 2 - {Grants

Grants and contracts receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2007:

County of San Diego - HOPWA ' £35,541
County of San Diego - CDBG 17,158
Total Grant and Contracts Receivable $52.699

Note 3 - Investments:
Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value at December 31, 2007 are summarized as follows:
Corporate Stock §20
Note 4 - Restricted Reserves:

According to the loan and regulatory agreements, the Agency is required to maintain the following
reserves. The following shows the activity in such accounts during 2007.

i1



TOWNSPEQOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Note 4 - Restricted Reserves: (Continued)
Operating Reserve

The Agency is required to fund an operating reserve for the 51st Street Apartments in
an inifial amount of $36,283. The following is the actmty m sthe operating reserve for the
year ended December 31, 2007:

Balance, Beginning of Year £ -0-
Add: Initial deposit 36,989
Interest income 138
Balance, End of Year $37.127
Replacement Reserve
r
The Agency is required t fund a.f?eplacement reserve for the 51st Street Apartments
in an annual amount of $13,512 e required deposit of $3,378, pro rated for the initial
year of operations, has not been made for the year ended December 31, 2007,
Note 5 - Land, Bujlding and Equipment:
Land, building and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2007:
Wilson Avenue land o $ 99,694
Wilson Avenue building 184,844
Wilson Avenue improvements 81,210
Equipment 34,177
Furniture 1,020
51st Street land 471,000
51st Street building 1,099,000
51st Street appliances and furniture 15,205
51st Street improvements 1,808,883
54th Street construction improvements 3,000
Total 3,798,033
Less: Accumulated depreciation 247.09%)
£3.550.940

Land, Building and Equipment, Net

12



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007
ote 6 ~ Line-of-Credit:
The Agency has a line-of-credit available in the amount of $ . The line-of-credit provides
for interest at the bank’s prime rate ( % at December 31 2007) plus %. The line-of-credit is
secured by substantially all of the Agency’s assets, The line-of-credit expires . Out-

standing advances under the line-of-credit totalled $15,626 at_ﬁl)%gember 31, 2007,

Note 7 ~ Notes Pavable:

re 1pts a3 defined
be paid each year

X ipal balance of the
loan, Secured by a deed of tmst on the W1lson venue Apartments. The

ber 3f, 2007, therefore the accrued

J’

interest payable is included in long-te
392,684 at December 31, 2007. § 257,000

The Agency obtained a loan in the amount of $1,570,000 from the San Diego

Housing Commission in 2006 to purchase the 51st Street Apartments. The

loan bears interest at 3%. Interest is payable annually from residual receipts.

Loan and accrued interest are due and payable on May 1, 2071, Secured by

a deed of trust on the 51st Street Apartments. Accrued interest totalled $64,179

at December 31, 2007, 1,570,000

The mortgage note which was originated in 2007 from the California Department of
Housing and Community Development (MHP) in the original amount of $1,554,327.
The note bears interest at 3%. Payments in the amount of forty-two hundredths of one
percent (42%]) per annum on the unpaid principal balance of the loan are payable begin-
ning December 31, 2007 and continuing annually thereafier up 1o the twenty-ninth
anniversary of the interest payment date. Commencing on the thirtieth (30th) anniver-
sary of the interest payment date and continning annually thereafter, payments shall
equal the lesser of (1) the full amount of interest accruing on the unpaid principal bal-
ance during the year, or (2) the amount determined by the lender as to be necessary to
cover the costs of continued monitoring of the compliance requirements under the loarn.
In addition, the loan may require additional payments from net cash flow under the
terms of the Regulatory Agreement. The note is due September, 2062, Secured

by a deed of frust on the 51st Street Apartments. Accrued interest totalled $11,398

at Decemnber 31, 2007. The required interest payment was $1,589 for the year ended
December 31, 2007. 1,554,327

13



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

Note 7 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

The mortgage note which was originated in 2006 from the Mission Federal Credit
Union for the Affordable Housing Program (AHP) in the original amount of $192,000,
The note is noninterest bearing as long as all compliance requirements of the loan are
met. Principal is due at the expiration of the retention period (15 years from date of

completion). Secured by a deed of trust on the 51st Street Apartments’ff’ §_192.0600
Total Notes Payable e $3.573.327

Note 9 - Commi t:

During the year ended December 31, 2007 the Agency leased office space at 3960 Park Avenue and
storage space. The lease term is on a month-to-month basis, The lease may be terminated by either party
with a minimum of 30 days written notice, Rent expense totalled $22,851 for the year ended December 31,
2007.

14



TOWNSPEOPLE
{A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

[y

5

DECEMBER 31, 2007
ASSETS
Slist Wilson
General Street Avenue Eliminaticn Total
Current Assels:
Cash ¥ 9,443 $ 2274 § 18,202 $ § 29919
Grants and contracts receivable 38,281 8,358 6,060 52,699
Accounts receivable, net 1,833 1,833
Prepaid expenses 4,423 4?332(;9”!"’ 2,164 10,219
Investments 20 & ;A 20
Total Current Assets 52,167 A& 167 -0 95,390
Restricted Reserves:
Operating reserve ~0- 37,127
Noncurrent Assets:
Land, building and equipment, net 3,550,940
Deferred developer fee (307,615) -0
Total Noncurrent Assets (307.615) 3,550,940
TOTAL ASSETS ) 375,707  $3,317.052  $298,313 $(307.615) £3.683.457
STABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable T RiL617 8 $ h) $ 11,617
Payroll taxes payable 6,525 6,525
Accried compensated absences 3,835 3,835
Accrued interest payebie {,589 1,589
Line-of-credit 15626 . 15,626
Deferred revenue ‘ - 25,000 1,736 114 26,850
Tenant security deposits 275 11,000 3,600 14,873
Total Current Liabilities 62 878 14325 3.714 -0- 80,917
Long-Term Liabilities:
Notes payable 3,316,327 257,000 3,573,327
Deferred developer fee payable 307,615 {307,615) -0-
Accrued interest payable 73,988 92.684 . 166,672
Total Long-Term Liabilities e 3.697.930 349,684 (307.6158) 3.739.999
Fotal Liabilities 62,878 3,712,255 353,398 {307,615) 3,820,916
Unrestricted Net Assets {Deficit) 12.82 (395.203) (53.085) 0- (137.45%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $375,707 $32317.052  $298313 $(307.613)

$3.683.457



TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, SUPPORT AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

51st Wilson
General Street Avene Elimination Total
Revenue and Suppert:
Developer fee §307,615 5 3 b $307,615
Grants and coniracts 80,549 24,225 91,100 155,874
Rental income 112,289 29,875 142,164
Contributions 8,108 50 B, 158
Interest income 1,397 2,676 4,073
Miscellanecus income ? 292 - 2,409
‘Total Revenue and Support 123,943 -0 660,293
Expenses:
Program Services:
51st Street Aparimenis 282,228
Hoeusing services 109,161
Wilson Avenue Apartments o 65,970 - _65.970
Total Program Services & 282225 65,970 -0- 457,356
Supporting Services;
General and administrative 186,328
Fundraising — —2.700
Total Supporting Services G- <0 -0- 192.028
Total Program and
Supporting Services 282,325 65,970 0- 649,384
Excess (Deficit) of Revenue and Support
Over (Under) Expenses $ 96480  §(j43.544) 357.973 §.0- $10.909
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TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Pass-Through Programs From:
San Diego Housing Commission:
HOME Investment Partnerships Programs

4239 $1,310,000

County of San Diego Department of Communj ‘

Development:
Housing Opportunities for Persons WathdAID 14.241 97,268
Housing Opportunities for Perso With Al 14.241 125,156
Community Developmen,t Bi 14,218 76,273

Community Developmen 14218 7.333
Total Pass-Through Prog 1,616,024

Total UL.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development $1.616.024

Note: The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance With Government Aut lflng Standards

To the Board of Directors
Townspeople
(A Nonprofit Corporation)}

We have audited the financial statemen
year ended Deceraber 31, 2007, and ha
audit in accordance with auditing st
standards applicable to financial audits ¢
Comptroller General of the United States. .

jeople (A Nonprofit Corporation) as of and for the
port thereon dated Fuly 8, 2008. We conducted our
ally accepted in the United States of America and the
ained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

A

Internal Control Over Finan Reporﬁng

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Townspeople’s internal control
of financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Townspeople’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Organization’s
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, such that there is more than a remote likeli-
hood that a misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements that is more than incon-
sequential will not be prevented or detected by the Organization’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant

deficiencies, that result in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the
financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the Qrganization’s internal control.
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To the Board of Directors Page 2
Townspeople
(A Nonprofit Corporation)

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify
all deficiencies in intemal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasona’oie assurance a

[p‘gé m%”; = .
“yut m‘;he: her ;T ownspeople’s financial

nc i) pl1an?é with those provisions was not an
0 nﬂéﬁtﬁ,pxpress such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed instances of 1t ’nbncom ’aﬁ%% or other matters that are required to be
ditiie Standards and which are described in the

estioned costs as item 07-1.

accompanying schedule of find gé and questioned costs. We did not andit Townspeople’s

response and, accordingly, we express no opinion ou it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, Board

of Directors, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

San Diego, California
July 8, 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Directors
Townspeople
(A Nonprofit Corporation)

Compliance

We have audited the compliance o
in the U.S. Office of Management an (OMB) Circular A-133 Compllance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major fed 'ral programs for the year ended December 31, 2007. Tcwnspeople s
major federal programs are identi Ahe summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Townspeople’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Townspeople’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Townspeople’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Townspeople’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Townspeople complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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To the Board of Directors Page 2
Townspeople
(A Nonprofit Corporation)

ternal Control Over Compliance

The management of Townspeople is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal
conirol over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Townspeople’s internal control over
compiiance with the reguirements that could have a direct and material effect on a maj or federal program
in order to determine our auditmg procedures for the purpose of e>§pressmg our opinion on compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opmlon on the eﬁectzggness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectxveness%‘ fﬁownspeopie s internal control over
compliance, ‘:5@ . =

smpliance exists when the design or operation

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal con’gﬁ
the normal course of performing their assigned

of a control does not allow management or emp!pyees
functions, to prevent or detect noncomphance € of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A significant deficiéncy is 4 ontro] deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity’s abil dmmlster a federal program such that there is more than a
remote [ikelihood that noncomphance with #@itype of compliance requirement of a federal program that is

more than inconsequential will not"’ﬁe preyented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a signiﬁcant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, board of directors, others

within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

San Diego, California
July 8, 2008
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TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Section 1 - Sumimary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issted: Ungqualified
‘{:3:

A

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? X_No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? X _No
No
Federal Awards
Type of auditor’s report issued on corpli
for major programs: | Ungqualified
Internal control over major prograzr?s:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X . No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X. No
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133, Section
.510(a)? o Yes X_No
Identification of major programs: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development
CEFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Programs
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $.300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X__No
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TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Sectian IT - Financial Statement Findings:

Finding 07-01 - Replacement Reserve Deposits:
Statement of Condition

In accordance with the California Departm
Development (MHP) regulatory agreement, ithe 4
replacement reserve account in the amount of $
yca: of opcratlons The Agency did not fii

l-f”ef Housmg and Community

9, 2008agreement.
Effect

Noncompliance with the requirements to fund the reserve account could lead to
monies not being available for the replacement of property.

Cause

The Agency did not implemént procedures o ensure that the replacement reserve
was properly funded.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Agency fund the replacement reserve with $3,378 for the

year ended December 31, 2007 and implement procedures to ensure that the
replacement reserve is funded on a monthly basis in the amount of $1,126.

Section 1Yl - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

None
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TOWNSPEOPLE
(A NONPROFIT CORPORATION)
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

There were no prior audit findings for Townspeople relative to federal awards.

24



CORRECTIVE ACTION

Department of Housing and Urban Development;

Townspeople respectfully submits the following cg;; -t

iph plan for the year ended December
31, 2007. ”

Name and address of independent public aé inting r?ﬁnn Leaf & Cole, LLP

i 1843 Hotel Circle South, Suite 300
San Diego, California 92108
Andit period: December 31, 2007

The findings from theDecem 31, 2007 schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed
below. The findings are numbered ¢ ,sxstently with the numbers assigned in the schedule. Section I of the
schedule, Summary of Audit Results, does not include findings and is not addressed.

Section II - Findings - Financial Statement Audit:

Recommendation

We recommend that the Agency fund the replacement reserve with $3,378 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and tmplement procedures to ensure that the replacement reserve
is funded on 2 monthly basis in the amount of $1,126,

Action Taken

The Agency will fund the replacement reserves for the vear ended December 31, 2007
in the amount of $3,378. In addition, the Agency will establish procedures to ensure that
monthly deposits totalling $1,126 are made to the replacement reserve.

Section 11l - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

No findings noted.



ATTACHMENT -7

HOUSING COMMISSION LOAN TERMS

AND

PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Total Development Cost:

Housing Commission Loan Amount:

Security:

Recourse:

Cure Rights:

Housing Commission Loan Payments:

Affordability Restrictions:

First Deed of Trust;

Second Deed of Trust:

The estimated total development cost of $7,626,264
includes repayment of a predevelopment loan,
rehabilitation, interest costs, builder overhead and
profit, and a developer’s fee.

A 82,040,000 loan leverages $5,586,264 from other
sources.

The Housing Commission loan would be secured by
a third trust deed recorded against the property.

With the approval of the other lenders, the Housing
Commission loan may be a recourse loan.

The Housing Commission would maintain the right
to cure defaults in accordance with the requirements
of the senior lenders.

Subject to the approval of the other lenders, annual
payments from 50 percent of the residual receipts of
the project commensurate with participation in the
loan financing. Any unpaid principal and interest
would be due and payable upon the earlier of first
loan maturity or project refinancing,

A Housing Commission Declaration of Covenants,
Conditions, and Restrictions with a 55-year term
would be recorded against the property to restrict
rents and occupancy for 12 units at 50 percent of
AMI and rents and occupancy of 21 units at 60
percent of AMI.

Up to $1,380,351 from CalHFA at 3.5 percent
interest with 20-year amortization and 55-year
affordability restrictions.

Up to $1,727,483 from MHP at three percent simple
interest per year with payments from residual
receipts and 55-vear affordability restrictions.



Management Plan:

Operating Expense:

Pro Forma Assumptions:

Reserves:

The Management Plan is subject to periodic review
and approval by the Housing Commission in its
reasonable discretion.

Annual operating expenses are estimated at $4,600
per unit for 34 units ($383 per month),

Income increases are projected at 2.5 percent per
year; operating expenses at 3.5 percent per year; the
vacancy rate at 5 percent per year. Any shortfall in
project income available for operating expenses
may be funded from reserves with the permission of
the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Housing Commission.

Subject to the approval of the senior lenders, annual
replacement reserves would be $17,136. Use of
reserves would require the reasonable approval of
the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Housing Commission.



ATTACHMENT - 8§

& $anDi
an Diego
A HOUSNC COMMISSION

July 31, 2008

Mr. Jon Derryberry
Townspeople

3960 Park Boulevard, Suitc B
San Diego, California 92103

Re: 4637 34™ Street
Subject: Townspeople 34™ Street

Dear Mr. Derrvberry:

I am pleased to offer Townspeople a loan for the above referenced development, under the terms and
conditions cutlined below, subject to the approval of the Housing Commission Board and the
Housing Authority and subject 1o your organization’s receipt of the other proposed financing.

The parameters of this loan cormmitment are as follows:

Ownership: Townspeople (Borrower) as the sele owner and operator of
the project.
Use of Loan Proceeds: The loan shall be used by Borrower to finance acquisition and

rehabilitation, including predevelopment costs and an interest
reserve, conditional upon the receipt of the ather sources of
financing.

Terms of the Loan; A residual receipts loan of up to $2,040,000. If an increase
in the amount of the HUD rent subsidy increases the
amount of alternate financing available, the Housing
Commission loan may be reduced accordingly. The interest
rate shall be three percent (3%) simple interest per year.
With the approval of the senior lenders, Borrower will
retain 50 percent of the residual cash flow and the
remaining 50 percent would be used to make payments on
the Housing Comumission, MHP, MHSA, and HOPWA
loans commensurate with each lender’s percentage of the
financing provided by those sources after payment of any

- required minimum-annual-payments. Unpaid principal and - -
interest on the Housing Commission loan would be due and
payable upon the earlier of refinancing or the maturity of
the senior loan.



Loan for Townspeople 34" Street
Page 2

Acceleration Upon Default:

Insurance:

Number of Units:

Affordability Terms:

Loan Security:

Senior Financing:

Fees and Expenses

In the event of a default of the Housing Commission foan, the
senior loan or any other sources of funds secured by the
project or rental restrictions on the project the Housing
Commission loan shall be due and payable in full including
any applicable interest penalties,

Borrower shall at all times during the term of the loan
maintain General Liability and Property Insurance in a form
and in amounts acceptable to the Housing Commission and
approved by the Housing Commission’s General Counsel.
The San Diego Housing Commission, the Housing Authority
of the City of San Diego, and the City of San Diego shall be
listed as an additional insured for General Liability Insurance
and Property Insurance and the San Diego Housing
Commission shall be endorsed as a loss payee of the Property
Insurance,

34 units. With one unit used as a manager’s residence, there
shall be a minimum of 33 units of permanent rental housing
including 12 one-bedroom units reserved for households with
HIV/AIDS,

The Housing Commission will record 55-year rent restrictions
against the property making 12 units affordeble to tenants
with annual incomes of 30 percent of Area Median Income
(AMI) and 21 units affordable to tenants with incomes of 60
percent of AMIL. The actual rents shall be the more restrictive
of the Housing Commission rents, or rents imposed by the
California Department of Housing and Community
Development, the County of San Diego, CalHFA, HUD, or
any other source of funds or rent restrictions on the project.

The Housing Commission loan shall be evidenced by a deed
of trust, in a form and format aceeptable to the Housing
Commission and its General Counsel in their sole discretions,
made in favor of the Housing Commission and secured by the
value of the property.

The Housing Commission loan will be subordinate to

estimated senicr 16ans of $1,380,351 from CalHF A and

$1,727,483 from the State’s MHP program.

All fees and expenses of this project shall be approved by the
Housing Commission in its sole discretion. An Asset
Management Fee required by the State of California
Department of Housing and Community Development shall
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Reserves

Recourse:

Cure Rights:

Management Plan:

Approval of Management:

Monitoring Fees:

Loan Funding:

ALTA Lender’s Policy:

Csalgdigerstion.

not increase at an inflation factor exceeding 3.5 percent per
vear. The developer’s fee shall not exceed $724,000 and shall
be disbursed as outlined in the Housing Commission Loan
Agreement,

Subject to the approval of the senior lender and tax credit
investor, Borrower shall deposit a minimum of $17,136 per
year into a dedicated replacement reserve account. Use of
reserves shall be subject to the reasonable approval of the
Housing Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer
or designee,

The Housing Commission loan may be a recourse loan with
the approval of the senior lenders.

The Housing Commission shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to cure all senior encumbrances in all
subordination agreements that it executes. All subordination
agreements shall be subject to the sole approval of the
Housing Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer
and General Counsel.

The Management Plan shall be subject to periodic approval by
the Housing Commission, in its reasonable discretion,

The Housing Commission reserves the right to declare
Borrower in default of the loan agreement after an uncured
ninety (90) day written notice of malfeasance and/or
misfeasance in management of the project,

The Housing Commission shall be entitled to its standard
yearly monitoring fees caleulated on a per-unit basis during
the affordability period.

The Housing Commission will fund its loan upon satisfaction
of all conditions set forth in the Housing Commission [oan
documents, including approval of a guaranteed maximum
price contract for rehabilitation. All documentation, including
any senior loan documents, construction loan documents, or
documents of other lenders shall be subject to review and
approval of the Housing Commission’s President and Chief
Executive Officer or designee and General Counsel, in their

The Borrower shall acquire, at its sale cost and expense,
ALTA Lender’s Policies for the loan with endorsements
acceptable to the Housing Commission insuring the Housing
Commission’s lien position.
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Prevailing Wages:

Environmental Requirements:

Other Terms:

Acceptance:

Borrower shall comply with any requirements to pay Federal
and/or State Prevailing Wage Rates and shall pay the higher
of the two in the event of a conflict on a trade-by-trade basis,

Notwithstanding any provision of this Letter, the parties agree
and acknowledge that this Letter constitutes a conditional
reservation and does not represent a final commitment of
HOME funds or site approval under 24 CFR Part 58 of the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). Should HOME
funds constitute a portion of the funding for the project, a
final reservation of HOME funds shall occur enly upon
satisfactory completion of environmental review and receipt
by the City of San Diego of a Release Of Funds from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development under 24
CFR Part 58 of NEPA. The parties agree that the provision of
any HOME funds to the project is conditioned on the City of
San Diego’s determination to proceed with, modify or cancel
the project based on the results of subsequent environmental
review under NEPA. By execution of this Letter, you
acknowledge no legal claim to any amount of HOME funds to
be used for the proiect or site unless and until the site has
received environmental clearance under NEPA. You are alsc
prohibited from undertaking or committing any funds to
physical or choice-limiting actions, including property
acquisition, demolition, movement, clearance, rehabilitation,
conversion, repair or construction prior to environmental
clearance under NEPA. Violation of this provision may result
in denial of any HOME funds for this project.

The Housing Commission reserves the right to impose any
additional conditions in the Housing Commission Loan
Daocuments that may be necessary, in its reasonable
discretion, to protect the interests of the Housing Commission
and fulfill the intent of this commitment, Such documentation
shall be approved by the President and Chief Executive
Officer, or designee, and the General Counsel of the Housing
Commission.

This commitment is conditional upon the Borrower receiving
approval from its other Jenders and investors for the financing
of this development. Signing and delivering to the Housing

COHmmission of this [S4&r by Aligust'§, 2008, shall evidence -

Borrower’s acceptance of this commitment. Until receipt of
such acceptance by the Housing Commission, the Housing
Commission shall have no [ability hereunder, and unless
acceptance is made by that date, this commitment shall be null
and void.
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If Borrower wishes to obtain a Housing Commission toan under the terms described herein, please
accept this commitment by signing below and returning this signed original to my office.

Sincerely,
o “'/‘f“:,
(it ko
Cissy Fisk{ r
Director of Housing Finance

619.578.7585
619.578.7356 fax

Agreed to and accepted this day of , 2008 by:

Authorized Representative

cady:fAletterCommitment TOWNSPEOPLE 34™ ST, (073108, doc (07/3 1708}





